Village Board Meeting Minutes January 3, 2023

The Village of Caledonia Board of Trustees held a meeting on Tuesday, January 3, 2023 at 6:30 p.m. at the Village Office.

Members Present: Mayor Scott DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor Jerry O'Donoghue, Trustee Janet Cappotelli and Dorothy Grant-Fletcher. Also present Working Foreman Chris Buckley, Code Enforcement Officer Mike Burnside, Officer-in-Charge Jared Passamonte and Village Attorney Ed Russell. Absent: Trustee Sarah Santora.

A **motion** was made by Trustee Grant-Fletcher to approve the December 6, 2022 Board Meeting Minutes; Trustee Cappotelli seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Cappotelli and Grant-Fletcher NAY: None

Open Forum – Richard Fisher, at 3358 Brown Road, discussed an article regarding recycling and the high percentage that isn't properly disposed of. Mayor DiLiberto noted that Casella trucks are split; one side for garbage, the other recycle items. Once the trucks leave the village, we have no way of knowing where they end up.

Mayor DiLiberto Report – Scott discussed the Livingston County Economic Development Department's plan to attend our February 7th Board Meeting. The discussion will be about the April 8, 2024 solar eclipse set to cross over the Caledonia area. More information will be available in February.

Trustee Cappotelli and Chris Buckley discussed JP Schepp of MRB Group providing a google map of Hamilton Park to assist Parkitects with revitalization plans for Hamilton Park. Trustee Santora, unable to attend tonight meeting, would like to have the Monument Park renovations included in the upcoming 2023-2024 Budget. Ideas would be to clean up and remove the overgrown bushes, add overhead lighting similar to what Avon has done, light the poles and add more seating as a place to gather. Trustee Santora will apply to the Livingston County Downtown grant for up to \$5,000 funding/50% matching grant. Chris Buckley will meet with Sarah at the park to review plans.

Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue – as liaison to the Caledonia Fire District attended their last meeting. The 2023 contract was fixed to not include water billing in with the other utilities included in their monthly rent fee. Also, Chris Buckley is working on repairs in the fire hall.

Code Enforcement Officer Mike Burnside presented a verbal December Report. Mike has been completing numerous inspections and met with Upstate Breaker regarding a new building being submitted to the Planning Board. A **motion** was made by Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue to accept the report; Trustee Grant-Fletcher seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Cappotelli and Grant-Fletcher NAY: None

A **motion** was made by Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue to approve the following Budget Amendment; Trustee Grant-Fletcher seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Cappotelli and Grant-Fletcher NAY: None

F2140 Metered Water Sales \$13,500 & F8310.200 Water Equipment

A **motion** was made by Trustee Cappotelli to move the Tim Anderson donation funds, \$13,845, from the Trust & Agency account to the Park Reserve, in order to collect interest; Trustee Grant-Fletcher seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Cappotelli and Grant-Fletcher NAY: None

A **motion** was made by Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue to approve the following Budget Transfer; Trustee Cappotelli seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Cappotelli and Grant-Fletcher

NAY: None

H1440.400 Capital Engineering \$320 & H8540.400 Capital Drainage

Clerk-Treasurer Ann Marie Grattan presented the December Clerk Report. Submitted were Budget Status Reports for General, Water, Capital and Trust & Agency Funds, a list of revenues and expenditures and the Financial Report. Department Supervisors received their Payroll & Contractual Reports. A motion was made by Trustee Cappotelli to accept the report; Trustee Grant-Fletcher seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Cappotelli and Grant-Fletcher NAY: None

Working Foreman Chris Buckley presented the December DPW Report. 6,477,000 gallons of water was pumped and water testing samples were negative. Under water distribution six stake outs were performed, valves exercised, remote meters installed and the GIS mapping of the water system was started. Streets includes snow/ice removal, brush pick up after wind events and new business district garbage cans installed. The old ones were refurbished and will be relocated to the parks. Equipment repairs and building maintenance continues. A **motion** was made by Trustee Grant- Fletcher to accept the report; Trustee Cappotelli seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Cappotelli and Grant-Fletcher NAY: None

A **motion** was made by Trustee Grant-Fletcher to approve the 1994 step van and pressure washer as surplus property; Trustee Cappotelli seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Cappotelli and Grant-Fletcher NAY: None

OIC Passamonte presented the December Police Report. There were 61 calls for service, nine Town of Caledonia assists, four motor vehicle accidents, one mental health incident, 16 traffic tickets issued and two arrests. There were several vehicle larcenies within Livingston County, a non-suspicious death on Church Street and larceny at the laundromat. Officer Passamonte had a safety meeting at Jones Chemicals with the fire department and County Emergency Management Services. Officer Estabrooks had a DMV hearing for a DWI arrest. Officer Passamonte attended the Livingston County Drug Task Force and Law Enforcement Council meetings. Ongoing issues continue at the Caledonia Apartments on Leicester Street. A motion was made by Trustee Grant-Fletcher to accept the report; Trustee Cappotelli seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Cappotelli and Grant-Fletcher NAY: None

SRO Mike Burnside presented the School Resource Officer Report for December. There were 23 district requests for police services, five out-of-building assists, four classroom visits and four emergency drills. The 3rd grade classes were escorted to a field trip. The SRO assisted with an early dismissal, identifying a pill found, school safety assessment, a student/family issue, holiday events, a dislocated family and a motor vehicle bus accident in Wheatland. A **motion** was made by Trustee Grant-Fletcher to accept the report; Trustee Cappotelli seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Cappotelli and Grant-Fletcher NAY: None

Solar Local Law Chapter 105 amendment – discussion regarding finalizing the local law. Village Attorney, Ed Russell, will contact Planning Board Chair Rhett Clark to discuss if the Planning Board is in approval of the proposed set-backs. The New York State application form will be added for large scale solar projects. Ed will present a tentative local law at the February 7th Village Board Meeting. The Village Board will schedule a public hearing for Tuesday, March 7th.

Bills were audited and ordered paid:

Abstract #725, General Fund \$18,841.10 & Water Fund \$1,072.46 Abstract #726, General Fund \$69,593.03 & Water Fund \$32,875.60 Abstract #524, Water Fund \$16,504.95

A **motion** was made by Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue to approve the bills paid; Trustee Grant-Fletcher seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Cappotelli and Grant-Fletcher NAY: None

Local Law #1-2023 – a **motion** was made by Trustee Cappotelli to schedule the Tax Cap Override Local Law for Tuesday, February 7, 2023 at 6:30 p.m.; Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Cappotelli and Grant-Fletcher NAY: None

A **motion** was made by Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue to approve Mayor DiLiberto to sign the 2023 Parking Lot Lease Agreement with the Caledonia War Veterans Memorial Inc., Trustee Grant-Fletcher seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Cappotelli and Grant-Fletcher NAY: None

Livingston County 2023 Income Exemptions was presented to the board. Village code §192-17 & §192-23 Section A – The schedule of income limits and exemption percentages to be applied to real property owned by eligible persons shall be the same schedule as that adopted each yar by the County of Livingston. The Clerk will contact the county to certify the Income Limit Questionnaire.

A **motion** to adjourn was made by Trustee Cappotelli at 7:15 p.m.; Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Cappotelli and Grant-Fletcher NAY: None

Ann Marie Grattan Village Clerk-Treasurer